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• DANA F.COLE 
& COMPANYLLP 
CERTIFIED PVBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. 

To the Mayor and City Counci l  
City of Ger ing, Nebraska 

I N D EPEN DENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have aud ited the accompanying financia l statements of the governmenta l activities, business­
type activities, each major fund,  and the aggregate rema in ing fund information of the City of Gering, 
Nebraska , as of and for the year ended September  30, 2020, and the related notes to the fina ncia l 
statements, which col lectively comprise the City's basic financia l statements as l isted i n  the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation  and fa i r  presentation of these fi nancia l  statements 
i n  accordance with accounting princ ip les genera l ly accepted i n  the Un ited States of America; th is i n­
c ludes the design , implementation ,  and maintenance of i nterna l control relevant to the preparation 
and fa i r  presentation of fi nancia l statements that are free from materia l m isstatement, whether due 
to fraud or  error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our  responsib i l ity is to express opi n ions on these financial statements based on our  aud it. We con­
ducted our  aud it in accordance with aud it ing standards genera l ly accepted in the Un ited States of 
America and the standards appl ica ble to financia l aud its conta ined i n  Government Auditing Stand­

ards, issued by the Comptrol ler Genera l  of the Un ited States. Those standards requ i re that we plan 
and perform the aud it to obta in  reasonable assurance about whether the financia l  statements are 
free from materia l  m isstatement. 

An aud it i nvolves performing procedu res to obta in  aud it evidence about the amounts and  d isclo­
su res i n  the fi nancia l statements. The procedu res selected depend on the aud itors' judgment, i n­
c lud ing the assessment of the risks of materia l  m isstatement of the financia l  statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. I n  making those r isk assessments, the auditor considers i nterna l contro l re le­
vant to the entity's preparation and fa i r  presentation of the financia l  statements in order to design 
aud it procedu res that a re appropriate in the c i rcumstances, but not for the pu rpose of expressing an 
op in ion on the effectiveness of the entity's i nterna l contro l .  Accord i ngly, we express no such opi n ion .  
An aud it a lso inc l udes eval uating the a ppropriateness of accounting pol ic ies used and the reasona­
b leness of sign ificant accou nti ng estimates made by management, as wel l  as eva luating the overa l l  
presentation of the financial statements. 

We be l ieve that the aud it evidence we have obta ined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for ou r  aud it opin ions. 
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Opinions 

I n  our  opin ion,  the financia l  statements referred to above p resent fa i rly, i n  a l l  materia l respects, the 
respective fi nancial  position of the governmental  activities, business-type activities, each major fund ,  
and  the aggregate rema in ing fund i nformation of  the City of  Geri ng, Nebraska, as  of September 30,  
2020, and the respective changes i n  financial  position and ,  where appl icab le ,  cash f lows thereof for 
the year then ended in conform ity with accounting pri nc ip les genera l ly accepted i n  the Un ited States 
of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting princ iples genera l ly accepted i n  the Un ited States of America requ i re that the budgeta ry 
comparison information on pages 39 - 41 be presented to supplement the basic fi nancial  state­
ments. Such information ,  a lthough not a part of the basic fi nancia l statements, is requ i red by the 
Governmenta l Accounti ng Standards Board , who considers it to be an essentia l  part of fi nancial  re­
porting for placing the basic fi nanc ia l  statements in an appropriate operationa l ,  economic, or h istori­
ca l context. We have app l ied certa i n  l im ited procedu res to the requ i red supplementary information 
i n  accordance with aud it ing standards genera l ly accepted i n  the U n ited States of America ,  wh ich 
consisted of inqu i ries of management about the methods of preparing the information and compar­
i ng the information for consistency with management's responses to our  i nqu i ries, the basic fi nancia l  
statements, and other knowledge we obta ined du ring our  aud it of the bas ic f inancia l  statements. 
We do not express an op in ion or provide any assurance on the i nformation because the l im ited pro­
cedu res do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an op in ion or provide any assu rance. 

Management has om itted the management d iscussion and ana lysis that accou nti ng princi ples gener­
a l ly accepted i n  the U n ited States of America requ i res to be presented to supplement the basic fi nan­
c ia l  statements. Such m issing i nformation,  a lthough not a part of the basic financia l  statements, is 
requ i red by the Govern menta l Accou nting Standards Board who considers it to be an essentia l  part of 
financia l  reporting for p lacing the basic financial  statements in an appropriate operationa l ,  economic, 
or  h istorica l context. Our op in ion on  the basic financial statements is not affected by th is missing 
i nformation.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

I n  accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have a lso issued a report dated October 22, 
2021, on our consideration of the City of Gering, Nebraska's i nterna l  contro l  over financial  reporting 
and our  tests of its compl iance with certa in  provisions of laws, regu lations, contracts and grant agree­
ments, and other matters. The pu rpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of i nterna l 
control over fi nancia l reporting and compl iance and the resu lts of that testi ng, and not to provide a n  
op in ion o n  the interna l contro l  over financial reporting or on comp l iance. That report i s  an i ntegra l part 
of an audit performed i n  accordance with Government Auditing Standards i n  considering the City of 
Gering, Nebraska's i nternal  control over financial reporting and  com pl iance. 

Scottsbluff, Nebraska 
October 22, 2021 
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CITY OF GER ING ,  NEBRASKA 
STATEM ENT OF N ET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Business-
Governmenta l Type 

Activities Activities 
ASSETS 

Cu rrent assets 
Cash 11,393,089 13,506,506 
Cash  - county treasurer 90,012 
Receiva bles 

Taxes 559,328 
Accou nts and grants 949,922 1,494,473 
Unb i l led receivables 1,031,844 

I nterest 2,176 71,307 
Special assessment 2,880 

Prepa id  expense 25,000 
I nventory 17,515 790,144 

Tota l cu rrent assets 13,014,922 16,919,274 

Restricted assets 
Cash a n d  certificates of deposit 428,285 3,293,204 

Tota l restricted assets 428,285 3,293,204 

Capita l assets 
Nondeprecia ble 1,905,076 4,835,077 
Depreciable (net) 8 ,613,336 25,376,541 

Tota l capita l  assets 10,518,412 30,211,618 

Other long-term assets 
Due from other funds 185,018 
Economic development rea l 

estate 1,359, 108 
Loa ns receivab le 2,7 75, 156 

Tota l other long-term assets 4,134,264 185,018 

TOTAL ASSETS 28,095,883 50,609,114 

LIABI LITI ES 
Cu rrent l iab i l it ies 

Accounts payable 598,394 518,676 
Sales tax payable 11,593 63,216 
Accrued wages 7 7,540 67,223 
Accrued payro l l  expense 10,088 8,464 
Accrued i nterest 61,363 105,160 
Current portion of long-term debt 227 ,941 940,000 

Tota l current l iabi l ities 986,919 1,702,739 
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E l i  mi-
nations Tota l 

24,899,595 
90,012 

559,328 
2,444,395 
1,031,844 

73,483 
2,880 

25,000 
807,659 

29,934,196 

3 ,721,489 

3 ,72 1,489 

6,740, 153 
33,989,877 

40,730,030 

(185,018) 

1,359, 108 
2,775 ,156 

(185,018) 4,134,264 

(185 ,018) 78,519,979 

1,117,070 
74,809 

144,763 
18,552 

166,523 
1,167,941 

2,689,658 



LIAB I LITI ES (Continued) 
Noncu rrent l iab i l ities 

Customer deposits 
Com pensated absences 
La ndfi l l  closure costs 
Due to other funds 
Long-term debt 

Tota l noncurrent l i abi l it ies 

TOTAL LIABI LITI ES 

D EFERRED IN FLOWS 
U nava i lab le reven ues 

N ET POSITION 
I nvestment in capita l  assets, 

net of related debt 
Restricted 
U n restricted 

TOTAL N ET POSITION 

CITY OF GER ING,  NEBRASKA 
STATEM ENT OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Business-
Govern mental  Type 

Activities Activities 

543,27 1 
373,153 267 ,800 

2,018 ,130 
185,018 

1,056,584 9,305,000 

1,614,755 12, 134,201  

2,601,674 13,836,940 

2,775,156 

9,233,887 19,966,6 18 
5,795,627 3,208,067 
7 ,689,539 13,597,489 

22,7 19,053 36,772, 174 

See accompanyi ng notes to financia l statements. 
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E l i  m i-
nations Tota l 

543,271 
640,953 

2,018,130 
(185,018) 

10,361,584 

(185,018) 13,563,938 

(185,018) 16,253,596 

2,775,156 

29,200,505 
9,003,694 

21,287,028 

59,491,227 



CITY OF GERING,  N EBRASKA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Progra m  Net (Expense) Revenue a n d  
Revenues Changes in Net Position 

Charges Operating Primary Government 

for Grants and Goverhmenta l Business-Type Eli mi-
Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities nations Total 

Functions/programs 
Primary government 

Governmenta l activities 
General government (2,94 7 ,897) 512,864 740,702 (1,694,331) (1,694,331) 
Public safety (2,311,814) (2,311,814) (2,311,814) 
Public works (1,334,482) 13,379 1,342,494 21,391 21,391 
Culture and  recreation (2,638,040) 1,597,539 (1,040,501) (253,797) (1,294,298) 
Economic development (869,107) (869,107) (869,107) 
Interest expense (137,242) (137,242) _1_!_37,242) 

01 Tota l governmental activities (10,238,582) 2,123,782 2,083,196 (6,031,604) (253,797) (6,285,401) 

Business-type activities 
Electric (5,303,000) 9,739,129 4,436,129 304,425 4,740,554 
Water (1,304,072) 1,512,317 208,245 152,150 360,395 
Sewer (971,777) 1,269,992 298,215 149,350 447,565 
Landfi l l  (2,566,976) 3,062,868 495,892 353,859 849,751 
Golf (705,322) 515,750 (189,572) 325,200 135,628 
Gering Leasing Corp. (187,976) 310,944 122,968 122,968 
Civic Center (496,714) 290,635 �06,079) (206,079) 

Tota l business-type activities (11,535,837) 16,701,635 5,165,798 1,284,984 6,450,782 

Tota l primary government (21, 77 4,419) 18,825,417 2,083,196 (6,031,604) 5,165,798 1,031,187 165,381 



Taxes 
Sales tax 
Interest income 
Other 

Tota l general revenues 

Net transfers in (out) 

m 
CHANGE IN N ET POSITION 

NET POSITION, begin ning of year 

Prior period adjustment 

N ET POSITION, end of yea r  

See accom panying notes t o  financial statements. 

CITY OF G ERING, N EBRASKA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Expenses 

Program 
Revenues 

Charges Operating 

for 
Services 

Grants and 
Contributions 

Governmental 
Activities 

2,358,433 
1,748,953 

120,015 
1,612,499 

5,83�.!...�oo 

2,084,776 

1,893,072 

23,811,951 

(2,985,970) 

22,719,053 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in  Net Position 

Primary Government 

Business-Type Elimi-
Activities nations 

194,584 
(1,031,187) 

194,584 (1,031,187) 

(2,084,776) 

3,275,606 

33,496,568 

36,772,174 

Tota l 

2,358,433 
1,748,953 

314,599 
581,312 

5,003,297 

5,168,678 

57,308,519 

(2,985,970) 

59,491,227 



CITY OF GERING, NEBRASKA 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Total 

General Street Keno Non major Eli mi- Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Funds nations Funds 

ASSETS 

ASSETS 

Cash 1,905,148 1,154,387 1,444,647 6,888,907 11,393,089 

Cash - county treasurer 53,237 36,775 90,012 

Receivables 

Taxes 499,955 59,373 559,328 

Accounts and grants 526,378 130,300 17,358 275,886 949,922 

Interest 1,282 566 328 2,176 

-...j Special assessment 2,880 2,880 

Revolving loans receivable 2,775,156 2,775,156 

Inventory 17,515 17,515 

Restricted cash 428,285 428,285 

Due from other funds 40,671 (40,671) 

TOTAL ASSETS 3,472,471 1,344,060 1,462,571 9,979,932 (40,671) 16,218,363 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 212,981 59,646 35,272 290,494 598,393 

Accrued state and sales tax 2,788 8,805 11,593 

Accrued wages 65,507 9,296 2,737 77,540 

Accrued payroll expense 8,626 1,212 250 10,088 

Accrued interest 38,596 22,767 61,363 
Due to other funds 225,689 (40,671) 185,018 

Total liabilities 328,498 70,154 44,077 541,937 (40,671) 943,995 



DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 

Unavailable revenue - property taxes 

Unavailable revenue - notes receivable 

Total deferred inflow of resources 

FUND BALANCES 

Restricted 

Nonspendable 

Committed 

Assigned 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances 
CX> 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

CITY OF GERING, NEBRASKA 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

General 

Fund 

455,855 

455,855 

Street 

Fund 

Keno 

Fund 

428,285 1,273,906 1,418,494 

17,515 

1,716,410 

525,907 

2,688,117 1,273,906 1,418,494 

3,472,470 1,344,060 1,462,571 

Non major 

Funds 

2,775,156 

2,775,156 
------

2,674,942 

2,021,782 

2,817,645 

(851,530) 

6,662,839 

9,979,932 

Total 

Elimi- Governmental 

nations Funds 

455,855 

2,775,156 

3,231,011 

5,795,627 

17,515 

2,021,782 

4,534,055 

(325,623) 

12,043,356 
----

(40,671) 16,218,362 



CITY OF  G ERING,  NEBRASKA 
RECONCI LIATION OF TH E BALANCE SH EET OF GOVERN M ENTAL FU N DS 

TO TH E STATEM ENT OF N ET POSITION 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

TOTAL FU ND BALANCES - GOVERN M ENTAL FU N DS 

Amounts reported for governmenta l activities i n  the 
statement of net position a re d ifferent because: 

The property tax receivables are recogn ized in the 
fu nd financia l  statements when sou rces of reve­
nues become measurable and ava i lab le for 
current expend itures. However, receivables a re 
recogn ized in  the statement of net position when 
assessed . 

Capita l  assets used i n  governmenta l activities a re 
not cu rrent fi nancia l  resou rces and ,  therefore, 
a re not reported in the funds. 

Rea l estate held for futu re economic development 
purposes is not a current fi nanc ia l  resource and ,  
therefore, i s  not reported i n  the  funds. 

Long-term loan receivables a re not due and ava i l­
ab le i n  the current period and ,  therefore, a re not 
reported i n  the funds. 

Long-term l iab i l ities a re not due and payable in the 
cu rrent period and ,  therefore, a re not reported i n  
the fu nd financia l  statements.  

Compensated absences 
Long-term debt 

TOTAL N ET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITI ES 

See accompanyi ng notes to financ ia l  statements. 
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12,043,356 

455,855 

10,518,412 

1,359,108 

(373, 153) 
(1,284,525) 

22, 719,053 



CITY OF GERING,  N EBRASKA 
STATEMENT OF REVENU ES, EXPEN DITU RES, AND CHANGES I N  

FUN D  BALANCES 
GOVERN M ENTAL FU N DS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Tota l 
Genera l  Street Keno Nonmajor E l i  m i- Govern menta l 

Fund Fund Fund Fu nds nations Funds 

REVENU ES 
Taxes 1,500,926 401,652 1,902,578 

Sales tax 325,475 1,423,478 1,748,953 

I ntergovernmenta l and grants 740,702 1, 108,489 234,005 2,083,196 
Charges for services 512,864 1,597,539 13,379 2,123,782 

I nterest i ncome 15,919 10,696 16,771 76,629 120,015 
Other 2,350,304 3,758 5,426 629,861 (1,095,564) 1,893,785 

!-" 
0 

Tota l reven ues 5, 120,7 15 1,448,418 1,619,736 2,779,004 (1,095,564) 9 ,872,309 

EXPENDITURES 
Cu rrent 

Genera l  government 2,962,595 11,389 (66,592) 2,907 ,392 

Publ ic  safety 2,696,364 (571,024) 2,125,340 

Publ ic works 322,495 971,157 (304,097) 989,555 

Cu lture and recreation 945,437 1,485,101 187,202 (153,851) 2,463,889 

Economic development 1,038,967 1,038,967 
Capita l outlay 105,956 547,706 130,414 784,076 
Debt service 

Princ ipa l  27,697 27,697 
Interest 137 ,392 137 ,392 

Tota l expend itu res 7 ,032,847 1,518,863 1,485,101 1,533,061 (1,095,564) 10,474,308 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES (1,912,132) (70,445) 134,635 1,245,943 (601,999) 



i->' 
i->' 

CITY OF GERI NG,  N EBRASKA 
STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPEN DITU RES, AN D CHANGES I N  

FUN D  BALANCES 
GOVERN M ENTAL FU N DS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Genera l  Street Keno Non major 
Fu nd Fu nd Fu nd Fu nds 

OTH ER FI NANCI NG SOU RCES (USES) 
Payments received on loan 123,050 
Operati ng transfers i n  2,700,828 169,456 901,655 
Operati ng transfers out (45,421) (30,338) (1,611,404) 

Tota l other fi nanc ing 
sou rces (uses) 2,655,407 169,456 (30,338) (586,699) 

NET CHANGE IN  FUND BALANCES 743,275 99,011 104,297 659,244 

FU N D  BALANCES,  begi n n i ng of year  1,944,842 1,174,895 1,314,197 6,003,595 

FUND BALANCES,  end of year 2,688, 117 1,273,906 1,418,494 6,662,839 

See accompanying notes to financ ia l  statements. 

Tota l 
E l i  m i- Govern menta l 

nations Funds 

123,050 
(901,655) 2,870,284 
901,655 (785,508) 

2,207,826 

1,605,827 

10,437,529 

12,043,356 



CITY OF GERING ,  NEBRASKA 
RECONCILIATION OF  TH E STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITU RES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF TH E GOVERNM ENTAL FUNDS 
TO TH E STATEM ENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR TH E YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERN M ENTAL FUN DS 

Amounts reported for governmenta l activities i n  the statement 
of activities a re d ifferent because: 

The recogn ition  of property tax revenues in the fund financia l  
statements is made when sou rces of revenues become 
measurable and ava i lable for cu rrent expend itu res. How­
ever, revenues are recognized i n  the statement of activities 
when assessed . 

The purchase of long-term assets he ld for operating is not 
a cu rrent fi nancia l resou rce or use and ,  therefore, is not 
reported as income or expense i n  the statement of activities. 

The depreciation of long-term operating assets is a current 
fi nanc ia l  resou rce or use and ,  therefore, is reported as 
income or expense in the statement of activities. 

The pu rchase or  sa le of rea l economic development rea l estate 
is n ot a cu rrent financia l  resou rce or use and ,  therefore, 
is n ot reported as income or expense in the statement of 
activit ies. 

The d isbu rsement and repayment of economic development 
loans is not a cu rrent fi nanc ia l  resou rce or  use and ,  therefore, 
is n ot reported as income or  expense in the statement of 
activities. 

The recei pts and repayment of long-term debt is not a cu rrent 
financ ia l  resource or use and ,  therefore, is not reported 
as i ncome or expense in the statement of activities. 

The accu mu lation and use of compensated absence obl igations 
is a cu rrent financia l  resource or  use and ,  therefore, is 
reported as income or expense in the statement of activities. 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNM ENTAL ACTIVITI ES 

See accompanying notes to fina ncia l statements. 
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1,605,827 

455,855 

784,076 

(654,980) 

(404,336) 

(14,631) 

194,696 

(73,435) 

1,893,072 



CllY OF GERING, NEBRASKA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUN DS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Electric Water Wastewater Sanitation Golf Leasing Civic Eli mi-
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund nations Total 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash 8,734,085 53,848 1,361,038 1,885,286 200 1,421,509 50,540 13,506,506 
Cash - county treasurer 
Account receivable 924,592 208,109 111,453 244,956 4,753 610 1,494,473 
Unbilled receivables 684,663 151,884 107,239 88,058 1,031,844 
Interest receivables 15,443 2,249 428 11,349 41,838 71,307 
Prepaid expense 25,000 25,000 
Inventory 580,618 136,388 29,701 43,437 790,144 
Restricted cash 468,412 556,046 115,616 2,153,130 3,293,204 
Capital lease receivable 125,000 (125,000) 

Total current assets 11,407,813 1,108,524 1,725,475 4,407,779 48,390 1,588,347 51,150 (125,000) 20,212,478 

..... Noncurrent assets w 

Capital assets 
Nondepreciable 34,640 98,735 888,728 1,803,584 1,308,054 701,336 4,835,077 
Depreciable (net) 5,754,535 10,287,995 3,017,738 3,136,707 655,149 1,533,778 990,639 25,376,541 

Capital lease receivable (net) 510,000 (510,000) 
Due from other funds 1,819,164 (1,634,146) 185,018 

----

Total noncurrent assets 7,573,699 10,322,635 3,116,473 4,025,435 2,458,733 3,351,832 1,691,975 (2,144,146) 30,396,636 

TOTAL ASSETS 18,981,512 11,431,159 4,841,948 8,433,214 2,507,123 4,940,179 1,743,125 (2,269,146) 50,609,114 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 43,716 39,011 14,607 79,140 76,317 257,154 8,731 518,676 
Sales tax payable 39,562 13,190 7,068 2,995 401 63,216 
Accrued wages 15,817 14,458 9,067 19,423 8,458 67,223 
Accrued payroll expenses 2,042 1,908 1,187 2,419 908 8,464 
Accrued interest 47,234 9,674 3,172 3,242 41,838 105,160 
Current portion of long-term debt 431,600 88,400 140,000 125,000 280,000 (125,000) 940,000 

Total current liabilities 101,137 547,401 130,003 244,154 216,920 578,992 9,132 (125,000) 1,702,739 



CllY OF GERING, N EBRASKA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUN DS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Electric Water Wastewater San itation Golf Leasing Civic Eli mi-
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund nations Total 

LIABILITIES (Continued) 
Noncurrent liabil ities 

Customer deposit 458,685 74,166 10,420 543,271 
Accrued compensated absences 66,953 20,709 67,614 73,511 39,013 267,800 
Landfill closure costs 2,018,130 2,018,130 
Due to other funds 361,234 1,200,000 32,241 40,671 (1,634,146) 
Long-term debt 4,336,750 888,250 285,000 510,000 3,795,000 (510,000) 9,305,000 

----

Total noncurrent l iabil ities 525,638 4,792,859 955,864 3,576,641 581,254 3,835,671 10,420 (2,144,146) 12,134,201 ----

TOTAL LIABILITIES 626,775 5,340,260 1,085,867 3,820,795 798,174 4,414,663 19,552 (2,269,146) 13,836,940 
-----

NET POSITION 
Invested in capital assets, 

..... net of related debt 5,754,535 5,554,285 2,139,823 3,600,435 1,823,733 (1,233,168) 1,691,975 635,000 19,966,618 � 

Restricted 458,685 559,551 115,616 2,074,215 3,208,067 
Un restricted 12,141,517 (22,937) 1,500,642 (1,062,231) (114,784) 1,758,684 31,598 (635,000) 13,597,489 

TOTAL NET POSITION 18,354,737 6,090,899 3,756,081 4,612,419 1,708,949 525,516 1,723,573 36,772,174 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



CITY OF GERING, NEBRASKA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Electric Water Wastewater Sanitation Golf Leasing Civic Eli mi-

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund nations Total 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Charges for services 9,637,636 1,507,302 1,268,640 3,052,083 508,137 289,984 16,263,782 
Other income 101,493 5,015 1,352 10,785 7,613 310,944 651 437,853 -----

Total operating revenues 9,739,129 1,512,317 1,269,992 3,062,868 515,750 310,944 290,635 16,701,635 -------

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Cost of sales 3,288,107 3,288,107 
Personnel services 1,057,937 506,463 536,451 1,138,865 417,494 3,657,210 
Operating material/supplies 78,559 32,985 17,171 23,916 91,247 243,878 
Operating expenses 512,806 293,884 167,071 850,415 109,458 6,515 410,437 2,350,586 
Depreciation and amortization 365,591 353,126 228,510 540,677 87,123 41,454 86,277 1,702,758 -----

Total operating expenses 5,303,000 1,186,458 949,203 2,553,873 705,322 47,969 496,714 11,242,539 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 4,436,129 325,859 320,789 508,995 (189,572) 262,975 (206,079) 5,459,096 

I-" NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
(J1 

Bond issue costs 

Interest income 98,051 11,652 15,517 32,859 18 39,362 367 (3,242) 194,584 
Interest expense (117,614) __ (22,574) (13,103) (3,242) (140,007) 3,242 (293,298) 

Total nonoperating revenues 

(expenses) 98,051 (105,962) __ E,o57J 19,756 (3,224) (100,645) 367 (98,714) 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING 

TRANSFERS 4,534,180 219,897 313,732 528,751 (192,796) 162,330 (205,712) 5,360,382 ------

OPERATING TRANSFERS 

Operating transfers in 1,327 268,633 104,625 (374,585) 
Operating transfers out (2,135,404) (69,380) (127,380) (127,197) 374,585 (2,084, 776) 

Total operating transfers (2,134,077) (69,380) (127,380) (127,197) 268,633 104,625 (2,084,776) 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 2,400,103 150,517 186,352 401,554 75,837 162,330 (101,087) 3,275,606 

NET POSITION, beginning of year 15,954,634 5,774,673 3,735,438 4,210,865 1,633,112 363,186 1,824,660 33,496,568 

Prior period adjustment 165,709 __Q§_?,709) 

NET POSITION, end of year 18,354,737 6,090,899 3,756,081 4,612,419 1,708,949 525,516 1,723,573 36,772,174 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



CITY OF GERING, NEBRASKA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Electric Water Wastewater Sanitation Golf Leasing Civic Eli mi-

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund nations Total 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash received from customers 9,672,852 1,450,994 1,268,336 3,052,157 520,946 325,174 16,290,459 
Cash received from other sources 101,493 5,015 1,352 10,785 7,613 310,944 651 437,853 
Cash payments to suppliers of goods 

and services (4,081,729) (281,447) (175,555) (682,361) (167,223) 210,217 (410,038) (5,588,136) 
Cash payments to employees (1,050,218) (497,265) (537,136) (1,138,578) (422,637) (3,645,834) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 

operating activities 4,642,398 677,297 556,997 1,242,003 (61,301) 521,161 (84,213) 7,494,342 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING 

ACTIVITIES 

Capital lease receipts (payments) (120,000) 120,000 
Operating loans in (out) 161,540 (6,048) (83,386) 40,671 112,777 

...... 
Ol Operating transfers in (out) (2,134,078) (69,380) (127,380) (127,197) 268,633 104,625 (1,031,187) (3,115,964) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 

noncapital financing activities (1,972,538) (75,428) (127,380) (127,197) 65,247 160,671 104,625 (1,031,187) (3,003,187) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Payments for capital assets (12,200) (29,113) (35,135) (255,333) (1,308,054) (13,925) (1,653, 760) 
Payments on long-term debt (406,700) (83,300) (130,000) (270,000) (890,000) 
Interest payments (124,395) (24,564) (13,778) (3,763) (118,770) 3,242 (282,028) 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital 

and related financing activities (12,200) (560,208) (142,999) (399,111) (3,763) (1,696,824) (13,925) 3,242 (2,825, 788) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Interest income 105,451 11,143 15,384 30,860 17 19,475 367 (3,242) 179,455 

Net cash provided by (used in) 

investing activities 105,451 11,143 15,384 30,860 17 19,475 367 (3,242) 179,455 



CITY OF GERING, NEBRASKA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Electric Water Wastewater Sanitation Golf Leasing Civic Eli mi-

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund nations Total 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 2,763,111 52,804 302,002 746,555 200 (995,517) 6,854 (1,031,187) 1,844,822 

CASH, beginning of year 6,439,386 557,090 1,174,652 3,291,861 2,417,026 43,686 13,923,701 
----

CASH, end of year 9,202,497 609,894 1,476,654 4,038,416 200 1,421,509 50,540 (1,031,187) 15,768,523 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net 

Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

Operating income (loss) 4,436,129 325,859 320,789 508,995 (189,572) 262,975 (206,079) 5,459,096 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

(loss) to net cash provided by (used in) 
...... operating activities: 
"" 

Depreciation and amortization 365,591 353,126 228,510 540,677 87,123 41,454 86,277 1,702,758 
(Increase) decrease in assets: 

Accounts receivable 77,385 (32,582) 6,019 157 12,809 37,267 101,055 
Unbilled revenue (34,408) (26,187) (6,323) (83) (67,001) 
Prepaid expense 

Inventory 84,203 1,675 (7,060) (4,151) 74,667 
Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 

Accounts payable (253,263) 30,614 8,679 21,970 37,155 216,732 2,073 63,960 
Sales tax payable (33,198) 13,133 7,068 478 (1,674) (14,193) 
Accrued wages 2,146 7,496 3,205 4,341 (1,550) 15,638 
Accrued payroll expenses 25 847 253 208 (369) 964 
Customer deposit (7,761) 2,461 (2,077) (7,377) 
Accrued compensated absences 5,548 855 (4,143) (4,262) (3,224) (5,226) 
Landfill closure costs 170,000 170,000 

Total adjustments 206,268 351,438 236,208 733,008 128,271 258,186 121,866 2,035,245 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating 

activities 4,642,397 677,297 556,997 1,242,003 (61,301) 521,161 (84,213) 7,494,341 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



CITY OF G ERING,  N EBRASKA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF S IG N I F ICANT ACCOUNTI NG POLICI ES 

The City of Gering, Nebraska, is a mun ic ipa l ity located i n  Scotts B l uff County. It operates 
as a Counci l-Mayor form of government. The City Counc i l  is composed of eight (8) counc i l  
members and a mayor e lected at-la rge by the citizens. 

The financia l statements of the City are prepared in accordance with accounting pri ncip les 
genera l ly accepted in  the U n ited States of America (GMP) . The Governmenta l Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for estab l ish ing govern­
menta l accounting and financia l  reporting pri nci ples. 

A. REPORTI NG ENTITY 

The basic fi nanc ia l  statements report on the government as a whole. They inc lude 
the City of Geri ng, Nebraska , and its component u n it. The b lended com ponent un it 
reflects the fi nanc ia l  i nformation of the City of Gering Leasing Corporation as a part 
of the proprieta ry funds. The City management and govern i ng body exercise com­
plete financia l  control over the City of Gering Leas ing Corporation .  Its activities a re 
for the sole benefit of the City. The services provided by the City of Ger ing Leasing 
Corporation is so i ntertwined with the City, that the City of Geri ng Leas ing Corporation 
is, in substance,  the same as the City is reported as a part of the City and blended 
i nto the City's fi nanc ia l  statements. 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Government-Wide F inancia l Statements 

The Statement of Net Position  and Statement of Activities d isplay information about 
the reporting government as a whole and report using the economic resou rce measure­
ment focus on the accrual  basis of accounting. They i nc lude a l l  funds of the reporting 
entity except for fiduc iary funds. The statements d isti ngu ish between governmenta l  
and busi ness-type activities. Governmenta l activit ies genera l ly are fi nanced th rough 
taxes, intergovernmenta l revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type 
activities are fi nanced i n  whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods 
and services.  

In the statement of net position ,  both the governmenta l a nd bus iness-type activities 
are presented i n  a consol idated basis, wh ich recogn izes a l l  long-term assets, receiva­
bles, and long-term debt and obl igations. Net position is reported in th ree categories 
invested i n  capita l assets net of re lated debt, restricted net position ,  and u n restricted 
net posit ion . 

The Statement of Activities reports both the gross and  net cost of each of the City's 
governmenta l  functions and business-type activities. The net costs of each governmen­
ta l function a re a lso su pported by genera l  government revenues (taxes and certain i n­
tergovernmenta l revenues, etc. ) .  The statement of activities red uces gross expenses 
(inc lud i ng depreciation )  by related program reven ues and by operating and capita l  
grants, i f  any. Program revenues must be  d i rectly associated with a governmenta l 
function or business-type activity. 
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CITY OF GERING ,  NEBRASKA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 SUM MARY OF S IGNI FICANT ACCOUNTI NG POLIC IES (Contin ued) 

B.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Conti nued) 

Government-Wide Financia l  Statements (Contin ued) 

Separate fi nanc ia l  statements are provided for governmenta l funds. Major i nd ivid ua l  
government funds a re reported as  separate col umns i n  the fund fi nancial  statements 
as appl i cable .  

Fund Financ ia l  Statements 

Fu nd financia l  statements of the reporting entity are organ ized into funds, each of 
which is considered to be a separate account ing entity. Each fund is accounted for 
by provid i ng a separate set of self-ba lanc ing accounts that constitute its assets, l ia­
bi l ities, fund equ ity, revenues, and expend itu res/expenses. Fu nds a re orga n ized i nto 
two major categories: governmenta l and proprietary. An emphasis is placed on ma­
jor  funds with i n  the governmenta l and propr ieta ry categories. A fund is considered 
major if it is the primary operating fu nd of the City or  it meets the fol lowing criteria :  

a .  Tota l assets, l iabi l ities, revenues,  or expend itu res/expenses of the i nd ividua l  
governmenta l  or enterprise fund a re at  least 10% of the  correspond ing tota l 
for a l l  funds of that category or type, and 

b.  Tota l assets, l iabi l ities, revenues,  or  expend itu res/expenses of the i nd ivid ua l  
governmenta l o r  enterprise fund a re at least 5 %  of the correspond ing tota l for 
a l l  governmenta l a nd enterprise funds combined ,  or 

c. Management has elected to classify one or  more governmenta l  or enterprise 
fu nds as major for consistency in reporting from year to year, or because of 
pub l ic  i nterest i n  the fund's operations. 

The fun ds of the City fi nancial  reporting entity a re descri bed below: 

Governmenta l Funds 

Genera l  Fund 
The Genera l  Fund is the genera l  operating fund of the City. I t  is  used to accou nt 
for a l l  f inanc ia l  resou rces except those requ i red to be accounted for i n  another 
fu nd .  The Genera l  Fund is a lways considered to be a major fu nd.  

Specia l  Revenue Funds 
Spec ia l  Revenue Fu nds a re used to accou nt for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sou rces (other than trusts for ind ivid ua ls, private orga n izations, or other govern­
ments or  for major capita l  projects) that a re lega l ly restricted to expend itu res for 
s pecific purposes. 

Streets Fu nd 
The Streets Fund is a specia l  revenue fund used to account for receipts and d is­
bursements attributed to ma intenance and improvement of the city streets a nd 
othe r  c ity i nfrastructu re. This fund has met the criteria for presentation i n  the 
fund financ ia l  statements as a major governmenta l fund.  
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CITY OF G ER ING ,  N EBRASKA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1 SUM MARY OF SIGN I FICANT ACCOUNTI NG POLICI ES (Contin ued) 

B.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Conti n ued) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Governmenta l Funds (Contin ued) 

Keno Fund 
The Keno Fund is a specia l  revenue funds and accounts for revenues and ex­
pend itu res for the keno  operations of the City. Th is fund has met the criteria 
for presentation in the fund fi nancia l  statements as a major  governmenta l  fund.  

Proprietary Funds 

Enterprise Funds 
Enterprise Funds a re used to account for operations (a) that a re fi nanced and 
operated i n  a manner s imi lar  to private business enterprises, where the i ntent of 
the govern ing body is that the costs (expenses, inc lud ing depreciation )  of provid­
ing goods or services to the genera l  pub l ic  on a continu ing  basis be fi nanced or 
recovered primari ly th rough user charges; or (b) where the govern i ng body has 
decided that period ic  determi nation  of revenues earned , expenses i ncu rred , 
and/or net i ncome is appropriate for capita l  ma i ntenance ,  publ i c  pol icy, man­
agement contro l ,  accou ntab i l ity and/or other purposes. 

E lectric Fund 
Financed primari ly by user charges, th is fund accou nts for the construction and 
operation of the m u n ic ipal  e lectric system a nd related fac i l ities. This is a major 
fund.  

Water Fund 
Fi nanced primari ly by user cha rges, th is fund accou nts for the construction and 
operation of the m u n ic ipal  water system and related faci l ities. This is a major 
fu nd.  

Wastewater Fund 
Financed primari ly by user cha rges, th is fund accou nts for the construction and 
operation of the m u n ic ipa l  sewer system and related faci l ities. This is a major 
fund.  

San itation Fund 
Financed primari ly by user cha rges, th is fund accounts for the mun ic ipal  san ita­
tion col lection process and construction and operation of related fac i l ities. This 
is a major fu nd.  

Go lf Fund 
Fi nanced primari ly by user charges, th is fund accou nts for the use, operations, 
and maintenance of the City's golf cou rse. 
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CITY OF GERING,  NEBRASKA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1 SUM MARY OF SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES (Contin ued) 

B.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Contin ued) 

Fund Financia l  Statements (Conti nued) 

Proprietary Funds (Conti nued) 

Leasing Corporation Fund 
Leasing Corporation Fu nd is used to account for leas ing of acq u isition or con­
struct ion of major cap ita l fac i l ities (other tha n those fi nanced by proprietary fund 
types). 

Civic Center Fund 
F inanced pr ima ri ly by user charges, th is fund accou nts for the use, operations, 
and ma intenance of the City's operation of the Civic Cente r  fac i l ity. 

The Golf Fund ,  Leasing Corporation Fund,  and Civic Center Fund have not met the 
criteria for presentation in the fund fi nancia l  statements as major  enterprise funds. 
However, because of the activity of the funds, comm u n ity i nterest, and perceived 
importa n ce,  the City has elected to present these funds as major enterprise funds 
in the fund financ ia l  statements. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactions are recorded 
with i n  the va rious fi nancia l  statements. Basis of accounti ng refers to "when" reve­
nues and expend itu res or expenses are recogn ized i n  the accounts and reported i n  
the fi nancia l  statements, regard less of the measurement focus. 

The City's basis of accounti ng for governmenta l funds is the mod ified cash basis, 
which is a basis of accounting other than US GMP. Under  US GMP, transactions are 
recorded i n  the accou nts when revenues are earned and l iab i l ities a re i ncurred. Un­
der the mod ified cash basis, transactions a re recorded when cash is received or d is­
bursed . 

Measurement Focus - I n  the government-wide statements, both governmenta l  and 
bus iness-type activities a re presented using the econom ic  resources measurement 
focus and the accrua l  basis of accounti ng, as a re the propriety fu nd fi nancial  state­
ments. 

I n  the governmenta l fund financia l  statements,  the "cu rrent fi nancia l  resources" 
measurement focus, as appl ied to the mod ified accrua l  basis of accounting, is 
used as a ppropriate: 

Al l governmenta l funds uti l ize a "current fi nancia l  resou rces" measurement focus. 
On ly current f inanc ia l  assets a nd l iabi l it ies are genera l ly included on their  ba lance 
sheets. The i r  operati ng statements present sou rces and uses of ava i lable spenda­
ble fi nanc ia l  resou rces du ring a given period . These funds are fund ba lance as the i r  
measure of ava i lab le spendable fi nancial  resou rces at  the end of  the period . 
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CITY OF GERING ,  NEBRASKA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 SUM MARY OF S IGNI FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES (Contin ued) 

B .  BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued )  

M easurement Focus and  Basis of Accounting (Contin ued) 

In the bus iness-type fund financia l  statements and government-wide statement of 
net positions and statement of activities a re presented usi ng the econom ic re­
sou rces measurement focus, as a ppl ied to the accrua l basis of accounting, is used 
as appropriate: 

The proprietary funds and government-wide statements uti l ize an "economic  re­
sou rces" measurement focus. The accounting objectives of th is measurement fo­
cus a re the determination of operati ng i ncome, changes i n  net position ,  fi nanc ia l  
position ,  and cash flows. Al l assets and  l iab i l ities (whether cu rrent or noncu rrent, 
fi nanc ia l  or nonfi nancia l )  associated with the i r  activities a re reported . Proprietary 
fu nd equ ity is classified as net position .  

Basis of Accou nting 

Government-wide Fi nancia l Statements - The governmenta l  fund financ ia l  state­
ments a re presented usi ng a mod ified accrua l  basis of accounting. Reven ues a re 
recognized as soon as they a re both measu rab le and ava i lable. Revenues are 
considered to be ava i lable when they a re col lecti ble with the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay l i ab i l ities of the cu rrent period . For th is pu rpose, 
the government considers revenues to be ava i lable if they are col lected with i n  
s ixty days a s  of the end of the cu rrent fisca l period . Expend itures gene ra l ly a re 
recorded when a l iab i l ity is incu rred , as u nder accrual  accounti ng. However, debt 
c la ims and judgements are recorded on ly when payment is due. 

The government-wide statement of net pos ition and statement of activities and 
the bus iness-type fund financia l  statements a re presented using the a ccrua l  ba­
sis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses a re rec­
orded when a l iab i l ity is i ncurred ,  rega rd less of the tim ing or re lated cash flows. 
Property taxes are recogn ized as revenues i n  the year for wh ich they a re levied . 
G rants and s im i lar  items are recogn ized as revenue as soon as a l l  e l igib i l ity re­
q u i rements i mposed by the provider  have been met. 

Equ ity Classifications 

Government-Wide Financia l and Proprietary Fund Statements - Equ ity is classified 
as net position and is d isplayed in three com ponents as fol lows: 

a .  I nvested i n  capita l assets. net of re lated debt - Consists of capita l  assets i n­
c lud i ng restricted capita l assets,  net of accumu lated depreciation and  reduced 
by the outsta nd i ng ba lances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrow­
ings that a re attri butable to the acq u is ition ,  construction , or improvement of 
those assets. 
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CITY OF G ERING ,  NEBRASKA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 SUM MARY OF SIGNI FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES (Contin ued) 

B.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Contin ued) 

Equ ity Classifications (Contin ued) 

b. Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constra i nts p laced on its 
use e ither by (1) externa l  groups such as cred itors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws and regu lations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional 
provis ions or enabl i ng legis lation .  

c. Un restricted net position - Al l other  assets that do not meet the defi n ition of 
"restricted" or " invested i n  capita l assets, net of re lated debt." 

It is the City's pol icy to fi rst use restricted net position pr ior to the use of the unre­
stricted net position when a n  expense is i ncu rred for purposes for wh ich both re­
stricted a nd un restricted net position are ava i lable. 

Governmenta l Fund Statements - Governmenta l  fund equ ity is classified as fund ba l­
ance, and may d istingu ish between "Nonspendable", "Restricted" ,  "Committed", "As­
signed" and "Unassigned" com ponents. 

Fund Ba lance Classification Pol ic ies and Procedu res - The governmenta l fund  financia l 
statements present fu nd ba lances based on c lassifications that comprise a h ierarchy 
that is based primari ly on the extent to wh ich the City is bou nd to honor constra ints on 
the specific pu rposes for which amounts in the respective governmenta l funds can be 
spent. The classifications used i n  the governmenta l fund financia l  statements are as 
fol lows: 

Nonspendable - amou nts that cannot be spent because they a re either not i n  a 
spendable form (such as inventories and prepa id amounts) or  a re lega l ly or con­
tractua l ly requ i red to be ma i nta i ned i ntact. 

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific pu rposes because of con­
stra i nts im posed by externa l  providers (such as grantors,  bondholders, and h igher 
levels of government), or  im posed by constitutional  provisions or  enabl ing legis la­
tion . 

Committed - amounts that can be spent on ly for specific pu rposes pursuant to con­
stra i nts im posed by formal action of the City Counc i l .  These amounts cannot be 
used for any other pu rpose un less the counci l removes or changes the specified 
use by taking the same type of action (ord inance or resol ution) that was employed 
when funds were i n itia l ly comm itted . Th is classification a lso i nc l udes contractua l  
obl igations to the extent that exist ing resources have been specifica l ly committed 
for use i n  satisfying those contractua l  requ i rements. 
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CITY OF GERING,  NEBRASKA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1 SUM MARY OF SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES (Contin ued) 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Contin ued) 

Equ ity Classifications (Contin ued) 

Assigned - amou nts that are constra ined by the City's i ntent to be used for a speci­
fied pu rpose but are neither restricted nor com mitted. This i ntent can be expressed 
by the City Clerk, uti l ity Superi ntendent, or  th rough the City Counc i l  delegating this 
responsi b i l ity to the City Clerk through a budgetary process. 

Unassigned - amounts that a re ava i lable for any pu rpose; these amounts ca n be 
reported on ly in the City's Genera l  Fund.  

Restricted Assets - The City wou ld typica l ly use restricted fund ba lances fi rst, fol­
lowed by com m itted resources, and then ass igned resou rces, as appropriated op­
portun ities a rise, but reserve the l ight to selectively spend u nassigned resources to 
defer the use of these other classified funds 

Fixed Assets 

Govern ment-Wide Statements 

Capita l Assets - wh ich inc lude property, p lant, and  eq u ipment and infrastructure 
assets, a re reported in the appl icable governmenta l or bus iness-type activities 
co l umn  i n  the government-wide statements. Capita l assets a re defined as assets 
that have i n itia l  usefu l l ives that extend beyond a s ingle reporting period . Capita l 
assets a re stated at cost or estimated h istorica l cost if actua l  is u nava i lable, ex­
cept for donated assets, wh ich are recorded at the i r  fa i r  va l ues when donated . 
The city uti l izes a m in imum capita l ization threshold of $5,000 for non-infrastruc­
tu re ca pita l assets and a threshold of $50,000 for infrastructure capita l  assets. 

As perm itted by GASB Statement 34, the City has e lected to capita l ize govern­
menta l  fund  type i nfrastructu re, consist ing pri ma ri ly of street improvements, on a 
prospective basis. Consequently, except for proprieta ry fund types, the fi nancia l  
statements do not include i nfrastructu re pr ior to  October 1 ,  2003 with the excep­
tion of sign ificant street projects. 

Major expend itu res for property and those wh ich substantia l ly i ncreased usefu l 
l ives a re capita l ized . Ma intenance, repa i rs ,  and  m i nor  renewa ls a re expensed 
when incu rred . When fixed assets are reti red or otherwise d isposed of, the i r  costs 
and re lated accumu lated depreciation a re removed from the accounts and resu lt­
i ng ga ins or losses are i ncluded in income. Net i nterest cost re lati ng to construc­
tion  is cap ita l ized . 
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CITY OF G ERING ,  NEBRASKA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1 SUM MARY OF SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES (Contin ued) 

B .  BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Conti n ued) 

Fixed Assets (Conti nued) 

Depreciation has been provided using the stra ight- l ine method over estimated 
usefu l l ives as fol lows: 

Bu i ld ings 
Improvements 
Equ ipment and veh ic les 
I nfrastructu re 

Fund Fina ncia l  Statements 

25 - 40 years 
10 - 40 years 

3 - 10 years 
10 - 50  years 

Capita l Assets - Aris ing from cash transactions acqu i red for use i n  governmenta l 
fund operations are accounted for as capita l outlay expend itu res of the governmen­
ta l fund upon acqu isition . Capita l assets acqu i red for use in proprietary fund opera­
tions a re accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements.  

Cash and  Cash Equ iva lents - I ncl udes cash on hand and cash in ban ks i nc lud i ng certifi­
cates of deposit. As of Septem ber 30, 2020, there were no cash equ iva lents. Certa in  
cash and i nvestment accou nts a re restricted for construction projects, debt service, 
compl iance with bond covenants,  and other pu rposes. Assets are a lso restricted in the 
proprietary funds for refund i ng customer meter deposits. 

Receivables 

Government-Wide Statements - Consist of a l l  revenues earned at year end and 
not yet received . Princ ipa l  receivab le  ba lances for the governmenta l activit ies a re 
for accounts receivable, grants rece ivable, property taxes, loans, sa les taxes, and 
i nterest. 

Business-type activities report uti l ities, u n bi l led uti l ities, i nterest, grants,  and  capita l 
lease receivable as the ir  major receivables. 

Fund Fina ncia l  Statements - Consist of a l l  revenue accruals such as property, 
sa les, and use taxes, s ince they a re usua l ly measurable and ava i lab le  i n  60 days. 

l nventorv - Recorded at the lower of cost or net rea l izable va lue, using the fi rst- in  
fi rst-out method . 

Restricted Assets - Includes cash and certificates of deposit that a re restricted as to 
its use. The primary restricted assets a re re lated to debt and landfi l l  c losure costs 
and re lated l iab i l ities. When both restricted a nd un restricted resou rces a re ava i lab le 
for use, it is the City's pol icy to use restricted resources fi rst and then u n restricted 
resou rces as needed . 
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CITY OF GER ING ,  NEBRASKA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGN I F ICANT ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Contin ued) 

B .  BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Conti n ued) 

Long-Term Debt - Consists of notes payable, revenue bonds, genera l  ob l igation 
bonds, and capita l  leases. Long-term debt for govern menta l funds is not reported as 
l iab i l ities in the fund fi nancia l  statements. Debt proceeds a re reported as other fi­
nancing sou rces, and  payment of pri nc ipa l  and interest a re reported as expenditu res. 

Compensated Absences - Recorded as e ither current portion and/or long-term l iabi l i­
ties i n  the government-wide statements. I n  the fund financia l statements, govern­
menta l funds report o n ly the l i ab i l ity payable from expendab le  ava i lable f inancia l 
resou rces, wh i l e  the proprieta ry funds report the l iabi l ity as it is i ncurred . 

Revenues 

Program Revenues - I n  the statement of activities, revenues that a re derived d i­
rectly from each activity or from parties outside the City taxpayers a re reported as 
program revenues. The City has the fo l lowing program revenues in each activity: 

Genera l  Government 

Publ ic Works 

Cu lture and Recreation 

Economic Development 

Licenses, perm its, and  use fees for recrea­
tiona l property. 

Commercial  tax sha red by the State; capita l  
grants for h ighway a l locations. 

Renta l  i ncome, recreation fees, concess ion 
sa les, and specific donations. 

Licenses and perm it and a pp l ication fees. 

Al l other govern menta l reven ues are reported as genera l .  Al l taxes are classified as 
genera l revenue even if restricted for a specific pu rpose. 

Operati ng Revenues and Expenses - I n  the proprieta ry funds resu lt from provid i ng 
services and prod ucing and del ivering goods and/or services. They a lso inc lude a l l  
revenues and expenses not related to capita l  and related fina nci ng, noncap ital fi­
nancing, or i nvesti ng activities. 

Expend itures - Classified by function for both governmenta l and bus iness-type activi­
ties in the government-wide fi nancia l  statements. In the fund fi nancia l  statements, 
expend itu res a re class ified by cha racter (current, capita l outlay, a nd debt service) i n  
the  govern menta l funds as  operating and nonoperating i n  the proprietary funds. Pro­
prieta ry fund inventory costs a re reported i n  the period when inventory items are 
used rather than  i n  the period purchased . 
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CITY OF GERING, NEBRASKA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1 SUM MARY OF SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES (Contin ued) 

B.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued) 

l nterfund Activity - Reported as either loans, services provided ,  reimbursement, or  
transfers. Loans a re reported as i nterfund  receivables and payables as appropriate 
and a re subject to el im i nation upon consol idation .  Services provided , deemed to be 
at ma rket, or near market rates, are treated as reven ues and  expend itu res/ex­
penses. Reimbursement are when one fund  incurs a cost, cha rge the appropriate 
benefiti ng fund ,  and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other  i nterfund 
tra nsactions a re treated as transfers. Transfers between governmenta l or proprieta ry 
fu nds a re netted as part of the reconci l i ation to the government-wide financia l state­
ments. 

Deferred I nflows of Resources - In add ition to l iab i l ities, the statement of net posi­
tion or ba lance sheet wi l l  sometimes report a separate section  for deferred inflows of 
resou rces. Th is separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an  acqu isition of net position that app l ies to a futu re period and so wi l l  
not b e  recogn ized a s  an i nflow of resources (revenue) u nti l that time. The City has 
two items that qua l ify for reporting in th is category and are reported in  the govern­
menta l  fund  ba lance sheet. The u nava i lab le revenues a re from property taxes and 
notes receivable that are deferred and recogn ized as an  inflow of resou rces i n  the 
period that the amounts become ava i lab le .  

Use of Estimates - The preparation of fi nancia l statements in  conform ity with ac­
counting pr inc ip les genera l ly accepted i n  the U n ited States of America requ i res man­
agement to make estimates and assum ptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets a nd l iab i l ities a nd d isclosure of contingent assets and l iab i l ities at the date of 
the fi nanc ia l  statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses d u ring 
the reporting period . Actua l resu lts cou ld  d iffer from those estimates. 

Property Tax - Rea l estate taxes are levied December 1 each year and become a l ien 
on rea l property on January 1 of the next yea r. Persona l  property taxes on owned or 
leased property as assessed as of January 1 of each year and become a l ien on  a l l  
persona l  property owned as of Decem ber 31 of that year. The fi rst half of both taxes 
is de l inquent May 1 and the second ha lf is de l i nquent September 1 of the fol lowing 
year. Taxes not pa id by the due dates become de l i nq uent and interest is assets at 
14%. 

Sa les & Use Tax - The city present levies a 7% sa les tax on taxable sa les with i n  the 
City. The sa les tax is col lected by the Nebraska Department of Revenue and rem itted 
to the City i n  the month fo l lowing recei pt. The Nebraska Department of Revenues re­
ceives the sales tax approximately one month after col lection by vendors. The sa les 
tax is recorded i n  the Specia l Revenue Fund and used for budgeted appropriations. 

Budgets - Prepared and adopted on the cash basis of accounti ng for a l l  governmen­
ta l funds. The City Counci l may make transfers of a ppropriates with i n  a department. 
Transfers of appropriations between departments requ i re the approva l of the govern­
i ng  counci l .  The actua l results of operations a re presented in a budgetary comparison 
sched ule .  Al l governmental funds have a lega l ly adopted annual budget. Appropria­
t ions lapse at year end buy ay be reappropriated in the fol lowing year. 
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CITY OF  GERING ,  NEBRASKA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 2 CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK - DEPOSITS 

The City uti l izes pooled cash and  certificates of deposit that are ava i la ble for use by a l l  
fu nds except those requ i red to  ma inta i n  separate accounts. Each fund type's a l locable 
portion of these pooled funds is d isp layed i n  the fi nancia l  statements as "Cash and certif­
icates of deposit." State law req u i res that a l l  funds held i n  depos itories be fu l ly insure or 
col latera l ized . 

Custod ia l  cred it risk is the r isk that i n  the event of a bank  fa i l u re ,  the government's de­
posits may not be returned to it. As of September 30, 2020, deposits with the financia l  
i nstitutions were un insu red by FDIC or  co l latera l ized by pledged secu rities i n  an  amount 
of $379,275. 

NOTE 3 RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Restricted cash in governmenta l funds consists of cash as fol lows: 

City Park 

Cash donated by the pub l ic  specifica l ly to be used 
for the improvement of the City's Northfie ld Park. 

City L ibrary 

Cash Donated by the pub l ic  specifica l ly to be used 
for the improvement of the City l i b ra ry. 

City Cemetery 

Cash rece ived for the sole pu rpose of perpetua l  
ca re of the City cemetery. 

Tota l governmenta l  funds restricted cash 

Restricted cash in business-type funds consists of cash as fol lows: 

Customer Deposits 

Cash requ i red by statute to be used solely for the 
pu rpose of refund ing uti l ity deposits held.  

Debt Retirement 

Cash requ i red held by debt instrument for the sole 
pu rpose of debt reti rement. 

La ndfi l l  Closu re Costs 

Cash requ i red by regu lation to be set aside solely 
for the purpose of sanitation landfi l l  closure and 
postclosu re costs. 

Tota l governm enta l  funds restricted cash 
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34,324 

1,237 

392,724 

428,285 

532,851 

736,001 

1,939,215 

3,208,067 



NOTE 4 CAPITAL ASSETS 

CITY OF GERING, NEBRASKA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Capita l  asset activity i n  the p roprietary funds for the year ended September 30, 2020, 
was as fol lows: 

Bala nce 
October 1, 

2019 Add itions 

Govern menta l  Activities 

La nd 829,498 

Bui ld ings and improvements 12,315,343 554,875 

Equipment and vehicles 5,939,520 76,172 

Construction in progress 905,914 169,664 

19,990,275 800,711 

Less accumulated depreciation (9,600,959) (671,615) 

Net capita l  assets 10,389,316 129,096 

Ba lance 
October 1, 

2019 Add itions 
Business-Type Activities 

Land 3,206,486 

Bui ld ings and improvements 10,662,779 38,366 

Uti l ity systems 36,807,044 16,873 

Equipment and vehicles 11,720,972 165,120 

Construction in progress 195,190 1,433,401 

62,592,471 1,653,760 

Less accumulated depreciation (32,331,855) (1,702,758) 

Net capita l  assets 30,260,616 (48,998) 

Depreciation expense was recorded to activities as fo l lows: 

Govern menta l Activities 
Genera l govern ment 
Publ ic  safety 
Publ ic  works 
Culture and recreation 

Business-Type Activities 
Electric 
Water 
Wastewater 
San itation 
Golf 
Leasing Corp. 
Civic Center 
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31,312 
140,558 
341,315 
159,437 
672,622 

365,591 
353,126 
228,510 
540,677 

87,123 
41,454 
86,277 

1,702,758 

Ba lance 
September 30, 

Deletions 2020 

829,498 

12,870,218 

(182,724) 5,832,968 

1,075,578 

(182,724) 20,608,262 

182,724 (10,089,850) 

10,518,412 

Balance 
September 30, 

Deletions 2020 

3,206,486 

10,701,145 

36,823,917 

11,886,092 

1,628,591 

64,246,231 

(34,034,613) 

30,211,618 



CITY OF GERING ,  NEBRASKA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 5 ECONOMIC DEVELOPM ENT LOANS RECEIVABLE 

LB 840 Econom ic Development Program loans receivable at September 30, 2020 consist of 
the fol lowing: 

LB 840/Economic Development 
Loans Receivable: 

Not el igible for job cred its 

Gra nts: 

Forgivable/El igible for job 
Credits 

Tota l LB 840 Receivables 

Balance 
October 1, 

2019 

610,128 

624,700 

1,234,828 

Add itions 
(Awards) 

100,000 

135,000 

235,000 

Credits 
& Refinanc­

ing 

167,700 

167,700 

Principal 
Payments 

90,887 

90,887 

Balance 
September 30, 

2020 

619,241 

592,000 

1,211,241 

USDA Rura l  Electric Revolvi ng Loans Receiva ble at September 30, 2020 consist of the 
fol lowing: 

Balance Cred its Balance 
October 1, Add itions & Refinanc- Principal Septem ber 30, 

2019 (Awards) ing Payments 2020 
U�DA Rural Electric Loa ns 

Receiva ble: 

lnterest free USDA 232,500 75,000 22,500 285,000 

Tota l USDA Receivables 232,500 75,000 22,500 285,000 

CDBG Revolving Loans Receivable at September 30, 2020 consist of the fol lowing: 

Balance Credits Balance 
October 1, Add itions & Refina nc- Principal September 30, 

2019 (Awards) i ng Payments 2020 
CDB� R!;"lvolving Loa ns 

Receivable: 

CDBG revolving 29,521 9,661 19,860 

Tota l CDBG Receiva bles 29,521 9,661 19,860 

Tax I ncrement F inancing (TI F) Loans Receivable at September 30, 2020 consist of the 
fol lowing: 

Balance Cred its Balance 
October 1, Add itions & Refina nc- Principal September  30, 

2019 (Awards) ing Payments 2020 

TI F Loans Receivable: 

TI F loans receiva ble 1,416,667 157,613 1,259,054 

Total TI F Receiva bles 1,416,667 157,613 1,259,054 
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CITY OF GER ING ,  N EBRASKA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 5 ECONOMIC DEVELOPM ENT LOANS RECEIVABLE (Contin ued) 

Tota l Economic Development Loans Receivable 

NOTE 6 LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt payable at Septem ber 30, 2020, is as fol lows: 

Balance 
Issue Due Interest October 1, 
Date Date Rate 2019 Proceeds Payments 

Governmental activities 

Note paya ble 9/30/17 9/30/22 0.00% 500,551 166,850 

Note paya ble 6/27/17 12/1/32 7.00% 902,500 

Note paya ble 3/29/07 12/15/21 7.00% 68,999 26,197 

Note payable 11/12/08 6/15/23 5.50% :Z.H2 1 649 

Total governmental 
activities 1 4:Z9 222 194..691 

Business-type activities 

Bond payable 4/17/12 9/30/23 0.35% - 2.75% 555,000 130,000 

Bond payable 7/15/16 12/15/36 0.08% - 3.45% 5, 166,489 398,139 

Bond paya ble 7/15/16 12/15/36 0.08% - 3.45% 1,068,511 91,861 

Bond payable 1/31/18 12/15/37 1.60% - 1. 70% 3,590,000 150,000 

Bond payable 6/14/16 12/15/24 0.06% - 1.70% :Z55 QQQ 12Q.QQQ 

Total business-type 
activities 11 135 QOQ fillil.illlQ 

Total government-
wide 12 614 222 l Q84 69:Z 

M atu rities during the next five years and thereafter are as fol lows: 

Govern menta l Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

Yea rs Ended Principal Interest Principal I nterest 
Septem ber  30, 

2021 227,941 83,092 940,000 262,701 

2022 234,927 60,814 695,000 249,300 

2023 57,079 56,519 705,000 236,608 

2024 58,922 52,651 570,000 222,700 

2025 63,259 48,313 585,000 211,839 

2026-2038 642,398 194,398 6,750,000 1,461,551 

1,284,526 495,787 10,245,000 2,644,699 

D i rect Borrowing and D i rect Placement Debt 

2.7 75.155 

Balance 
September 
30, 2020 Current Long-Term 

333,701 166,850 166,851 

902,500 31,315 871, 185 

42,802 28,035 14,797 

� ---1.ill � 

1 284 525 221.941 1 056  584 

425,000 140,000 285,000 

4,768,350 431,600 4,336,750 

976,650 88,400 888,250 

3,440,000 155,000 3,285,000 

§35 00Q 125,000 510,000 

10 245 000 94Q.QO.Q 9 3Q5 QOO 

11 529 525 1 161 941  1Q 361 584  

Tota l 
Principal I nterest 

1,167,941 345,793 

929,927 310,114 

762,079 293,126 

628,922 275,351 

648,259 260,152 

7,392,398 1,655,949 

11,529,526 3,140,486 

The City has outsta nd i ng bond debt from d i rect borrowing and d i rect placement re­
lated to business activities of the Leasi ng Corporation for the Stad ium and Quad 
Plex in  the amount of $3,440,000. The debt is secured by specific rea l estate. 
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CITY OF GER ING,  N EBRASKA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 6 LONG-TERM DEBT 

D i rect Borrowing and D i rect Placement Debt (Conti n ued) 

The City has outstand ing notes from d i rect borrowing and d i rect placement related 
to govern ment activities for TI F, I ndustria l  Park, and LB840 i n  the amount of 
$1,284,526. Th is debt is secu red by specific rea l estate a n d  personal  guarantees. 

NOTE 7 INTERFUN D  TRANSFERS, LOANS, AN D TRANSACTIONS 

Transfers - Used to (1) move revenues from the fund that col lects them to the fund 
that the budget requ i res to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt ser­
vice from the funds col lecting the receipts to a debt service fund ,  and  (3) use unre­
stricted revenues col lected i n  the Genera l  Fund to finance various programs 
accounted for i n  other fu nds i n  accordance with budgetary a uthorizations. 

Tra nsfers I n  Transfer Out 
Genera l  Fund 2,700,828 45,421 
Keno Fund 30,338 
Street Fund 169,456 
Nonmajor Fund 901,655 1,611,404 
Electric Fund 1,327 2,135,405 
Water Fund  69,380 
Sa n itation Fund 127 , 197 
Sewer Fu nd 127 ,380 
Golf Fund 268,633 
Civic Center Fund 104,625 

4,Q3Q,954 4.030.954 

Loans - Make loans from one fund to another for various pu rposes the fol lowing 
schedu le sum marizes i nterfund loans as of September 30, 2020. 

The City's Electric Fund made a loan  to a nonmajor 
governmenta l fund for the purposes of making 
economic development loans to loca l business. 
Repayment of this loan wi l l  be made as repayment 
resources become ava i lable. 225.687 
The City's Electric Fund made a loan  to the San ita-
tion Fund for the pu rposes of making economic de-
velopment loans to loca l busi ness. Repayment of 
th is loa n  wi l l  be made as repayment resou rces be- 1,20Q,QQQ 
come ava i lable .  
The City's E lectric fund made a loan to the Water 
Fund to meet short-term cash shortages experi-
enced by the Water Fund.  361,234 
The City's E lectric Fund made a loan to the Golf 
Fund to meet short-term cash shortages by the 
Golf Fund .  32,241 
The City's Genera l  Fund made a loan to the Leas-
ing Corp Fund to meet short-term cash shortages 
exper ienced by the Leasing Corp Fund.  4Q.671 
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CITY OF GER ING,  N EBRASKA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 7 I NTERFU N D  TRANSFERS, LOANS, AND TRANSACTIONS (Conti n u ed )  

Tra nsactions - The City is committed under both an operat ing and a cap ita l lease 
agreement with the City of Gering Leasing Corporation for lease of the m u n icipa l  
golf cou rse a long with the Stad ium a nd Quad plex ba l lfie ld .  The terms of the leases 
specify that lease payments wi l l  consist of a tota l of a l l  payments due to or payable 
on beha lf of the Leasing Corporation for bu i ld ing bonds payable th rough November 
15, 2037 .  The lease is i n  both the Leasing Corporation ,  Go lf Fund ,  and Genera l  
Fund.  

The fol lowi ng schedu le summarizes the current and futures years requ i red pay­
ments u nder lease. 

September 30, Capita l  Lease Operati ng Lease 

2021 125,000 155,000 
2022 125,000 155,000 
2023 125,000 160,000 
2024 130,000 160,000 
2025 130,000 875,000 

2026 - 2029 1,005,000 
2030 - 2037 930,000 

635,000 3,440,000 

El im i nation of cu rrent year i nterfund activity is as fol lows: 

Fund Financ ia l  Statements 
Governmenta l Funds 

Statement of net position 
Due to end from governmenta l  funds 

Statement of revenues, expend itu res, and changes i n  fund ba lance 
Net fund transfers between governmenta l funds 
Transfers for se lf-funded hea lth plan between govern ment funds 

Proprieta ry Funds 
Statement of Net Position 

Ca pita l  lease receivable and payable between proprieta ry funds 
Due to and from between proprieta ry funds 

Statement of revenues, expenses, and changes i n  net pos it ion 
New fund transfers between enterprise funds 
Interest i ncome and expense between proprietary funds 

Governm ent-Wide F inancia l  Statements 
Statement of Net Position  

Tota l 

280,000 
280,000 
285,000 
290,000 

1,005,000 
1,005,000 

930,0QO 
4,075,000 

Due from and to between governmenta l activities and business type act 
Renta l I ncome/Expense 
Statement of Activities 

Fund transfers between govern menta l and proprietary funds 
I nterest I ncome Expense 

Transfers for self-funded health plan between govern menta l and proprietary fu nds 
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40,671 

901,655 
1,095,564 

635,000 
1,634, 146 

374,585 
3 ,242 

185,018 
253,797 

2,084, 776 

1,031, 187 



CITY OF GER ING ,  N EBRASKA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 8 RISK MANAGEM ENT 

The City has establ ished a self-funded hea lth care plan for the benefit of e l igib le  City em­
ployees and thei r  e l igib le  dependents. The pla n provides reimbursement for covered 
charges i ncu rred as a resu lt of medica l ly necessary treatment for i l l ness or i nj u ry. The 
City purchases com mercia l  insurance of c la ims in  excess of coverage provided by the 
fu nd . At Septem ber 30, 2020, the City's maximum l iab i l ity was $45,000 per employee 
annua l ly under the p lan .  

The City is exposed to va rious risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and de­
struction of assets; errors and  omissions; inju ries to employees; and natu ra l d isasters. 
During the year, the City ca rried com mercia l  i nsurance for genera l  l i ab i l ity, publ ics offi­
cia ls' l iab i l ity, property coverage, workers' compensation coverage, commercia l  excess 
l iab i l ity coverage,  and the crime and b lanket bond coverage i nsu rance. Settled c la ims 
result ing from these risks have not exceeded commercia l  i nsurance coverage i n  any of 
the past th ree fisca l years. 

N OTE 9 ENVI RON MENTAL REMEDIATION 

The City is  subject to laws and  regu lations relating to the  protection of the environment. 
The City's pol icy is to accrue environmenta l and cleanup-related costs of a noncapita l  
nature when i t  i s  both probable that a l iab i l ity has been incurred a nd when the amount 
can be reasonably estimated .  Although it is not possib le to quantify with a ny degree of 
certa inty the potentia l  i m pact of the City's conti nu ing compl iance efforts, management 
bel ieve a ny future remed iation or other  compl iance-related costs wi l l  not have a materia l 
adverse effect on the financia l  cond ition or reported resu lts of operations of the City. 

NOTE 10 CONTI NG ENCIES 

Self- Insurance - The City operates a self- insured med ica l  i nsurance p lan for denta l and 
hea lth insurance for its employees. The City has contracted with a th i rd-party adm in istra­
tor to provide cla ims processing services. In add ition ,  the City has purchased a stop-loss 
pol icy covering a l l  cla ims in excess of $45,000 per year, per c la im .  The City reta i ns risk of 
loss for a l l  c la ims u p  to the stop-loss amount. As of September 30, 2020, cumu lative 
contributions and reven ues in excess of cla i ms and expense were $ 1,558, 126, which the 
City has designated for payment of future claims. 

Federa l and State G rants - In the normal course of operations, the City receives grant 
fu nds from various federa l  and state agencies.  The grant programs are subject to aud it 
by agents of the gra nting authority, the purpose of which is to ensu re comp l ia nce with 
cond itions precedent to the granting funds. Any l iab i l ities for reimbursement wh ich may 
a rise as the resu lt of these aud its a re not bel ieved to be materia l .  

U nemployment I nsurance - The City does not pay Nebraska Unemployment Tax, but i n­
stead operates on a rei m bu rsable basis. The City must re imburse the State for actua l  
benefit cha rges as they a re incurred . Based on prior experience, the City bel i eve c la ims 
of this nature, if any, wi l l  be im materia l .  
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NOTE 11 RETIREMENT PLANS 

CITY OF GERING,  N EBRASKA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

Genera l  - The City sponsors a defi ned contri bution plan wh ich covers substantia l ly a l l  
genera l city employees. Under the terms of the p lan ,  a n  employee must be age 21  or 
older and have com pleted one year of continuous service a nd have not atta i ned the age 
of 64. Partic i pati ng employees a re requ i red to contribute 6% of the i r  earn i ngs. The City 
then makes a match i ng contribution to the plan on the i r  beha lf. An add itional voluntary 
contribution can be made by employees to the p lan to the extent a l lowed under the I nter­
na l  Revenue Code, cu rrently an add itional  10%. The City w i l l  contribute an  amount equa l 
to an employee's volu nta ry contribution ,  not to exceed 6% of the employee's compensa­
tion . Employees are 100% vested in the plan after com pleti ng 5 years of service, reach­
i ng norma l reti rement age (65), meeting the requ i rements for ea rly reti rement date, 
becoming tota l ly d isabled ,  or deceased , wh ichever occu rs fi rst. Contr ibutions to the gen­
era l  city employee reti rement plan were $184,195 and $ 196, 154 by the City and plan 
participants,  respectively. There a re 65 participants in the plan .  

Pol ice - Pol ice officers a re covered by a defined contri bution p l a n  sponsored by the City. 
Participants i n  the p lan a re requ i red to contribute 7 .0% of the i r  sa lary to the plan ,  wh ich 
is matched by a 7 .0% contribution from the City. Employees are fu l ly vested after 7 whole 
years of service. Contri butions to the pol ice reti rement plan were $79,306 and $85,2 16 
by the City a nd p lan participants, respectively. There a re 18 pa rtic ipants i n  the p lan.  

F i re Fighters - Fi re fighters a re covered by a defi ned contri bution p lan sponsored by the 
City. E l igib le  employees are requ i red to contribute 6.5% of the i r  sa la ry to the plan ,  wh ich 
the City then matches at the rate of 13% of the pa rtic i pant's sa lary. Employees are 40% 
vested after 4 whole years of service and an additiona l 10% per year fol lowing unti l  fu l ly 
vested after com pletion of 10 years of service. A partic ipant's normal reti rement age is 
the date he atta ins age 55 and completes 21 years of service. Nebraska State statutes 
govern the coverage afforded to part ic ipants under th is p lan .  Contri butions to the fi re 
fighter's employee reti rement p lan were $9,456 and $4, 728 by the City and plan partici­
pants, respectively. There is 1 partic ipa nt in the p lan.  

NOTE 12 COM M ITM ENTS 

The City has entered i nto an  agreement with the city of Lyman to provide sol id waste col­
lection and d isposa l services effective through December 21, 2021. 

The City has entered i nto an  agreement with the city of M itche l l  to provide solid waste 
col lection and d isposa l services effective th rough January 31, 2025. 

The City has entered i nto an agreement with the c ity of Bayard to provide sol id waste col­
lection and d isposa l services effective through December 31,  2025. 

The City has entered i nto an agreement with the c ity of Scottsbluff to provide sol id  waste 
d isposa l services effective for the l ife of the currently existi ng Geri ng landfi l l .  

The  City has entered i nto an  agreement with Eric Reichert, I nsu lation and Construction 
for the base b id i n  relation to the Oregon Tra i l  Pa rk Quad Field Baseba l l/Softba l l  Complex 
i n  the amount of $ 1,848,226 with an  additional $22,858 for demol ition of existing 
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CITY OF GER ING ,  N EBRASKA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 12 COM M ITMENTS (Contin uea) 

structu res. There is an add itiona l  agreement for the project with Van Pelt Fenc ing i n  the 
amount of $62,258. Th is work is est imated to begin in the Sum mer of 2020 and com­
pleted before December 2020. 

NOTE 13 ECONOMIC DEPEN DENCE 

The City of Gering, Nebraska's Electric Department pu rchases most of its e lectricity for 
resa le to customers from Mun ic ipa l Energy Agency of Nebraska and Western Area 
Power A. 

NOTE 14 LANDF ILL CLOSURE COSTS 

State and federa l  laws and regu lations req u i red the City to place a fi na l  cover on its land­
fi l l  site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certa in  ma intenance and mon itor­
i ng  functions at the site for th irty years after c losure.  Although closu re and post c losure 
ca re costs wi l l  be pa id only near  or after the date that the landfi l l  stops accepting waste, 
the City reports a portion of these closure and post c losu re care costs as an  operating 
expense in each period base on landfi l l  capacity used as of each ba lance sheet date. The 
$2 ,018,130 reported as landfi l l  closu re and post c losure cost l iab i l ity at September 30, 
2020, represents the cum u lative amount reported to date on an  amount that wi l l  satisfy 
the expected l iab i l ity at the expected closure date i n  the year 2023. The estimated cost 
of c losure and post closure were re-estimated for cu rrent costs and cu rrent standards to 
$ 1,939,215 as of September 30, 2020. Actua l  post closu re costs may be h igher d u e  to 
i nflat ion,  changes i n  technology, or changes i n  regu lations. 

As of September 30, 2020, the landfi l l  is estimated to be at 85% capacity and expected 
to rema in  open an add itional 5.9 yea rs. 

NOTE 15 FUN D  BALANCES AND NET POSITION 

Governmenta l Funds - The City has requ i rements to restrict certa in  ba lances of fu nds for 
specified futu re use. These restrictions a re genera l ly the resu lt of laws, regu lations, or  
contracts. Add itional ly, the City has assigned certa in  ba lances for specified futu re use. 
These assign ments are genera l ly the resu lt of the govern ing body's i nventions. Rema in­
i ng  net fund ba lances not restricted or assigned a re u nassigned. The fol lowing schedu le  
presents restrictions to and assign ments of fund ba lance i n  governmenta l fund fi nanc ia l  
statements. 
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NOTE 15 FUND BALANCES AND N ET POSITION (Conti nued) 

Genera l  Keno  Street Non major Tota l 
Fund Fund Fund Funds Governmenta l 

Funds 
Restricted for: 

Assets held i n  trust 428,285 428,285 

Specified use by law 
or  regu lation 1,418,493 1,273,906 2,674,942 5,367,341 

Tota l restricted 
fu nds 428.285 1.418.493 1.273.906 2.674.942 5.795.626 

Nonspendable for: 

I nventory 17.515 17.515 

Com mitted for: 

Capita l project/ 1,235,464 1,235,464 
Tourism 

Debt Service 786,318 786,318 

Tota l commit-
ted funds 2.021.782 2.021.782 

Assigned for: 

Self-i nsu red costs 1,7 16,410 1,7 16,410 

Capita l  projects 2,817,645 2,817,645 

Tota l assigned 
fu nds 1,716,�UQ 2.817.645 4,534,Q55 

Business-Type Funds - The City has requ i rements to restrict certa i n  ba lances of funds for 
specified futu re use. These restrictions a re genera l ly the resu lt of laws, regu lations, or 
contracts. The rema i n ing net position is u n restricted . The fol l owing schedu le  presents 
restrictions to and assignments of fund ba lances in  the governmenta l fund financial 
statements. 

Electric Water Wastewater San itat ion Tota l 
Fund Fund Fund Fund 

Restricted for: 
Debt reti rement 485,385 115,616 135,000 736,001 
Landfi l l  c losu re costs 1,939,215 1,939,215 
Refu ndable customer 

deposits 458,685 74,166 532.851 

Total restricted 
fu nds 458,685 559,551 115,616 2,074,215 3,208,067 
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CITY OF GERI NG, NEBRASKA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 16 ECONOM IC DEVELOPM ENT REAL ESTATE 

The City acq u i res rea l property for the pu rpose of economica l ly d istressed areas for im­
provements and resa le .  Acqu isitions are genera l ly expected to prod uce sa le proceeds be­
low acqu isit ion cost u pon sale. As of September 30, 2020, the City holds one property for 
th is pu rpose at a tota l cost of $6,200. 

The City acqu i res rea l property for the pu rpose of provid i ng su ita ble  locations and incen­
tive for potentia l new commerc ia l  busi nesses to establ ish or  re locate business opera­
tions with i n  the City's economic a rea . As of September 30, 2020, the City holds two 
properties for th is pu rpose at a tota l cost of $1,352,908. 

NOTE 17 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTM ENT 

Governmenta l-Wide F inanc ia l  Statements 

The City previously reported long-term loans at the fu l l  loan of the loans. The City be­
l ieves these loans shou ld a lso be reported as Deferred I nflows of resources because the 
receivables a re unava i lab le. The amou nt of prior year receiva bles was, $2,985,940. 

Fund F inancia l  Statement 

I n  the prior year, the City pa id the combined Water and Sewer Funds Bond Debt payme nt 
which was recorded by the Water Fund on ly. The City recorded a prior period adjustment 
of $165, 709 to correct the Water and Sewer Fund net position as of September 30, 
2020. 

NOTE 18 SUBSEQU ENT EVENT 

I n  prepar ing the financ ia l  statements, the City has eva luated events and transactions for 
potentia l  recogn ition or d isclosu re th rough October 22,  2021, the date the financia l 
statements were ava i lable to be issued . 
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CITY OF  G ER ING ,  NEBRASKA 
SCH EDULE OF  REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN D CHAN G ES I N  

FUN D  BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) 
GENERAL FU ND 

FOR TH E YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
I ntergovernmenta l 
Loca l 

Tota l revenues 

Expend itu res: 
General  government 
Pub l ic  safety - Pol ice and Fi re 
Pub l ic  works - Other 
Cu ltu re and recreation 

Tota l expend itures 

Excess revenues over (under) expend itu res 

Fund ba lances, October 1 

Fund ba lances, September 30 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original  Fi na l  

1,589,958 1,589,958 
301,744 301,744 

6,174,598 6, 174,598 

8,066,300 8,066,300 

3,277 ,998 3,277 ,998 
2,688,751 2,688, 751 

352,300 352,300 
1,067, 198 1,067, 198 

7 ,386,247 7,386,247 

680,053 680,053 

39 

Actua l  
Amou nts 

1,427,522 
299,660 

5,569,176 

7 ,296,358 

2,895,226 
2,797 ,199 

321,286 
999,646 

7 ,013,357 

283,000 

1,944,842 

2,227,842 

Variance with 
F ina l  Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

(162,436) 
(2,084) 

(605,422) 

(769,941) 

382, 772 
(108,448) 

31,014 
67,552 

372,890 

(397,052) 



CITY OF GERI NG, NEBRASKA 
SCH EDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEND ITURES AN D CHANGES I N  

FUN D  BALANCES - BUDGET AN D ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) 
STREETS FUN D  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

Reven ues: 
Taxes 
I ntergovernmenta l 
Loca l 

Tota l revenues 

Expend itu res: 
Pu bl ic works - Streets 

Tota l expend itu res 

Excess revenues over (under) expend itu res 

Fund ba lances, October 1 

Fund ba lances, September  30 

Variance with 
Fi na l  Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Actua l  Positive 
Origi na l  F i na l  Amounts ( Negative) 

250,000 
1,124, 168 

410,500 

1,784,668 

2,326,036 
2,326,036 

(541,368) 
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250,000 
1,124, 168 

410,500 

1,784,668 

2,326,036 
2,326,036 

(541,368) 

323,828 
1,091,948 

183,910 

1,599,686 

1,517,761 
1,517,761 

81,925 

1, 174,895 

1,256,820 

73,828 
(32,220) 

(226,590) 

( 184,982) 

808,275 
808,275 

623,293 



CITY OF G ER ING ,  N EBRASKA 
SCH EDULE OF REVENUES,  EXPEN D ITU RES AN D CHANGES I N  

FUN D  BALANCES - BUDGET AN D ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) 
KENO FUN D  

FOR TH E YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 2020 

Revenues: 
Loca l 

Tota l revenues 

Expend itu res: 
Com m u n ity development 

Tota l expend itu res 

Excess reven ues over (under) expend itu res 

Fund ba lances, October 1 

Fund ba lances, Septem ber 30 

Variance with 
F ina l  Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Actua l  Positive 
Origi na l  F ina l  Amou nts (Negative) 

1 ,7 18,000 

1,7 18,000 

1,588,000 
1,588,000 

130,000 
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1,718,000 

1,7 18,000 

1,588,000 
1,588,000 

130,000 

1,626,737 

1 ,626,737 

1 ,515,437 
1 ,515,437 

111,300 

1,314, 197 

1,425,497 

(91,263) 

(91,263) 

72,563 
72,563 

(18,700) 



NOTE 1. 

NOTE 2. 

CITY OF GERING,  N EBRASKA 
NOTES TO REQU I RED SUPPLEMENTARY I N FORMATION 

BUDGET AN D BUDG ETARY ACCOUNTING 

The City fol lows the fol lowing procedu res i n  estab l ish ing the budgetary data reflected 
i n  the acco m pa nyi ng fi nancia l  statements: 

1. Prior to Septem ber 1, the City Clerk submits to the City Counc i l  a proposed oper­
ati ng budget for the fisca l year commencing the fol lowing October 1. The operat­
ing budget i nc ludes proposed expend itu res and the means of fi nanc ing them. 

2.  Pu bl ic hear ings a re conducted to obta in  taxpayer comments. 

3. Prior to Septem ber 20, the budget is lega l ly enacted th rough passage of an  ord i­
nance. 

4. Formal  budgetary i ntegration is employed as a management control device for 
the Genera l ,  Special Revenue and Proprieta ry Funds. 

5. Budgets are prepared using the cash basis of accounti ng which is a basis not 
consistent with accounting princi ples genera l ly accepted i n  the Un ited States of 
America . 

6. The City Manager  is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between depart­
ments with i n  any fund ;  however, any revision that a lters tota l expend itu res of any 
fund req u i res approva l of counci l and a pub l ic  heari ng. 

7 .  Al l appropriations lapse at  year end. 

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGET BASIS REVENUE AND EXPEN D ITURES TO GAAP 

Revenues and  expend itu res presented on a non-GAAP budget basis of accou nti ng 
d iffer from the revenues and expend itu res presented in accordance with GAAP be­
cause of the d ifferent treatment of accrua ls. A reconci l iation  for the year ended Sep­
tember 30, 2020, wh ich d iscloses the nature and amount of the adjustments 
necessary to convert the actua l  GAAP data to the budgetary basis, is presented be­
low: 

Genera l  
Fund 

Streets 
Fund 

Keno 
Fund 

Net change in fund ba lances: 
Ba lance on a GAAP basis 
Basis differences (accrua ls 

occu r because the cash 
basis of accounting use 
for budgeting d iffers from 
the mod ified accrua l ba­
sis of accounting pre­
scri bed for governmenta l  
fu nd 

Ba lance on a budget basis 

7 76,015 

(493.015) 

283.000 
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• DANA F. COLE 
& CO M PANYLLP 
C E R TI F I E D  P U BLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

I N D EPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON I NTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FI NANCIAL REPORTING AN D ON COM PLIANCE AND OTH ER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS PERFORMED I N  
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Mayor and  City Counc i l  
City of Gering, Nebraska 

We have aud ited , i n  accordance with the aud iti ng sta ndards genera l ly accepted i n  the U n ited States of 
America and the standards app l icable to financia l  aud its conta i ned i n  Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptro l ler Genera l  of the Un ited States, the financial  statements of the governmenta l 
activities, bus i ness-type activities, each major fund ,  and  the aggregate rema in i ng fund i nformation of 
the City of Geri ng, Nebraska , as of and for the year e nded September 30, 2020, and the re lated notes 
to the financia l statements, wh ich col lectively com prise the City of Geri ng, Nebraska's bas ic  fi nancia l  
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2021. 

I nternal Control Over Financial Reporting 

I n  plann ing and  perform ing our  aud it of the financia l  statements, we considered the City of Ger ing, 
Nebraska's i nterna l  control over fi nancial  reporting ( i nterna l  contro l )  to determ ine the aud it proce­
d u res that a re appropriate i n  the c i rcumstances for the pu rpose of expressing our  opi n ions on the 
financial  statements,  but not for the pu rpose of express ing an op in ion on the effectiveness of the 
City of Gering, Nebraska 's i nterna l contro l .  Accord i ngly, we do not express an opi n ion on the effec­
tiveness of the City of Gering, Nebraska's internal contro l .  

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not a l low man­
agement or employees, in the normal  cou rse of perform ing  thei r assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, m isstatements on a t imely bas is. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a com­
bination of defic iencies, in i nterna l  control such that there is a reasonable possib i l ity that a mater ia l  
m isstatement of the entity's financia l  statements wi l l  not be prevented , or detected and corrected on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a defic iency, or  a combination of deficiencies, in i nterna l 
control that is less severe than  a materia l weakness, yet i mportant enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of i nterna l  control was for the l im ited pu rpose described in  the first paragraph of 
th is section a nd was not designed to identify a l l  defic iencies i n  i nterna l  control that m ight be materia l  
weaknesses or sign ificant defic iencies and therefore, materia l  weaknesses or sign ificant defic iencies 
may exist that were not identified . We did identify a defic iency i n  i nternal contro l ,  described i n  the 
accompanying schedu le  of fi nd ings and questioned costs as item 2021-001 that we consider to be a 
material weakness. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obta in i ng reasonable assu rance a bout whether the City of Geri ng, Nebraska's fi nancia l  
statements are free of material m isstatement, we performed tests of its compl iance with certa i n  pro­
vis ions of laws, regu lations, contracts, a nd grant agreements, noncompl iance with wh ich cou ld  have a 
d i rect and materia l effect on the determ ination of financial  statement amounts. However, provid i ng 
an  op in ion on compl iance with those provis ions was not an objective of ou r aud it, a nd accord i ngly, we 
do  not express such an  op in ion .  The resu lts of our  tests d isclosed i nstances of noncompl iance or  
other  matters that is  requ i red to be reported u nder  Government Auditing Standards and is described 
in the accompanyi ng schedule of find ings and q uestioned costs as item 2021-002 and 2021-003. 

Management's Response to Findings 

The City of Gering, Nebraska's response to the fi nd i ngs identified i n  our  aud it is described i n  the ac­
companying schedu le of find ings and responses. The City of Geri ng, Nebraska 's response was not 
subjected to the aud iti ng procedu res app l ied i n  the aud it of the financia l  statements and,  accord i ngly, 
we express no opin ion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The pu rpose of th is report is sole ly to descri be the scope of our testi ng of i nterna l  control and compl i­
ance and the results of that testi ng, and not to provide an  opin ion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
i nterna l  control or on compl iance. Th is report is an i ntegra l part of an aud it performed in accorda nce 
with Government Auditing Standards i n  consider ing the entity's i nterna l control and  compl iance. Ac­
cord i ngly, th is commun ication is not su itable for any other purpose. 

Scottsbluff, Nebraska 
October 22, 2021 
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CITY OF GERING 
GERING,  NEBRASKA 

SCH EDULE OF FI ND INGS AND RESPONSES 
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

2020-001 SEGREGATION OF I NTERNAL CONTROLS 

Criteria 

An i ntegra l part of an  accounting and fi nancia l  reporting system i nvolves a structure pro­
cesses a nd procedu res, known as interna l  controls, which provid e  assurance that finan­
cial  i nformation is captu red and properly recorded on a t imely basis. 

Cond ition  

The City's i nterna l control structu re experienced extended periods of t ime d u ring the re­
porting period in which s ign ificant i nterna l controls were suspended or delayed for ex­
tended periods of time.  

The City responded to the COVI D 19 pandemic by c los ing the city offices and a l lowing 
personne l  to work from home. Add itiona l ly, the City experienced sign ificant resignations 
of accounti ng personne l  and was unable to h i re accepta ble rep lacement personnel  
with i n  a reasonable period of time. 

Potentia l Effect 

Errors and omissions of cou ld occurs in the financia l  i nformation without the contin ued 
proper i nterna l  control structure fol lowed a nd ma inta ined on a regu lar  recu rri ng basis. 

Recommendation 

Although we recogn ize the cond itions and events end u red by the City were unusual and 
i nfrequent, we strongly encou rage the City to recogn ize cond itions in the futu re that may 
lead to s im i l a r  degradation of the City's i nterna l  contro l structu re and seek external as­
sistance to m itigate or prevent the i nterna l contro l structu re degradation.  

City's Response 

The City understands the i nherent risks associated with i nadequate segregation of ac­
counting functions. The City req u i res month ly reporting to the City Counci l  and the City ad­
min istrator to ensure transactions are recorded , a nd potentia l  errors and i rregu la rities a re 
identified on a t imely basis. The City has cu rrently restored many i nterna l controls and is 
reviewing the accounti ng system for developing an  accepta ble control system. 

2020-002 UNCOLLATERALIZED BANK ACCOUNTS 

Criteria 

Nebraska state statutes requ i re that al l  deposits be co l latera l ized . 

45 



CITY OF GER ING 
GER ING,  N EBRASKA 

SCHEDULE OF FI N D I NGS AND RESPONSES 
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

2020-002 U NCOLLATERALIZED BANK ACCOUNTS (Conti n ued) 

Cond ition 

As of September 30, 2020, the City had unco l latera l ized deposits i n  the amount of 
$379,275.  

The City experienced sign ificant cha l lenges d u ri ng  the year i nc lud ing changes to operat­
i ng  procedu res necessary to address the concerns of the COVID-19 pandemic.  As a re­
su lt, non-critica l accounti ng functions were suspended , inc lud ing mon itor ing 
col latera l ization of bank  deposits .  

Potentia l  Effect 

The City bears unnecessary risk of loss of amounts held i n  excess of insured or col lat­
era l i zed deposits. 

Recommendation 

Management should mon itor cash ba lances to determ ine r isk on a regu larly recurri ng 
basis and request col latera l ization when necessary to ensu re that a l l  deposits a re col lat­
era l i zed and/or covered by FDIC insu rance. 

City's Response 

The City understands co l latera l ization requ i rement for cash deposits and had previously 
employed mon itoring proced ures to provide assu rance with compl iance requ i rements. 
However, because of cond itions that existed d u ri ng the year, these procedu res were not 
completed regu la rly. The city has restored cash deposit mon itori ng procedu res. 

2020-003 SUBM ISSION OF AUDTI ED FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

Criteria 

Nebraska state statutes requ i re that aud ited financia l  statements be completed and  
subm itted to  the State of Nebraska with i n  s ix months of the City's fisca l yea r end.  

Cond ition  

The City d id  not complete and submit aud ited fi nancia l  statements to the State of  Ne­
braska with i n  six months of the City's fisca l yea r end .  
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2020-003 SUBMISSION OF AUDTIED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (Continued) 

The City experienced s ign ificant cha l lenges d u ri ng the year inc lud ing  changes to operat­
i ng procedu res necessary to address the concerns of the COVID-19 pandemic.  As a re­
su lt, many processes needed to be com pleted pr ior to preparation ,  aud it a nd 
subm ission of fi nancia l statements to the State of Nebraska. 

Potentia l  Effect 

The City may be subject to l i m itations of state resou rces identified for the benefit of the 
City of Gering as wel l  as other lega l  remed ies as determ ined necessary by the State of 
Nebraska to obta i n  compl iance. 

Recommendation 

Management and Governance should be aware of cond itions a nd events wh ich may 
serve to impa i r  the City's ab i l ity for comp l iance with laws and regu lations and provide 
d i rection for m itigation of noncompl iance as necessary. 

City's Response 

The City understands the requ i rement to su bmit aud ited financ ia l  statements to the 
State of Nebraska and a l l  requ i rements to comply with a l l  laws and  regu lation the City 
is subject to. The City experienced sign ificant events, inc lud ing COVI D-19 operating con­
d itions, which delayed s ign ificant accounting processes necessary to prepare accu rate 
financia l  i nformation.  The City commun icated these cond itions and the City's i ntent to 
provide the requ i red fi nancia l  i nformation to the State of Nebraska the appropriate au­
thorities at the time it was determ ined the City wou ld not be able to com ply with the re­
qu i rements with i n  the requ i red period . The City wi l l  make a fu l l  subm ission of aud ited 
financia l  statements to the State of Nebraska.  
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